Regular Meeting
Monday, October 4, 2021
6:00 pm
Chowan County Public Safety Center
305 West Freemason Street

This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled October 4,
2021.

Present Chair Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Chris Evans, Tray Taylor, Larry McLaughlin, Ron
Cummings and Ellis Lawrence.

Commissioner Alex Kehayes was absent.

Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard, Finance Officer Cathy Smith and County
Attorney Lauren Arizaga-Womble.

Board Clerk Susanne Stallings was absent. Minutes were prepared from notes provided by the
Finance Officer and meeting audio.

Regular Meeting
Chair Kirby called the regular meeting to order and led all in the pledge of allegiance.

Commissioner Evans then offered the invocation.

Approval of Agenda
Mr. Howard noted a request to amend the agenda to add item 9a, Mexico Rd.

Commissioner Cummings moved to approve the agenda as amended. Chair Kirby asked for all in
favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0).

Public Comment
Chair Kirby then opened the floor for public comment.

There was none

Consent Agenda

a. Tax Refund/Release Report
Jacobson-Wetsel, D. $1,000 Overpayment

b. Approval of Minutes
The Board will review and consider approval of the minutes of the September 9,
2021 Joint School Committee meeting and September 20, 2021 regular Board
meeting.




Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Chair Kirby asked
for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0),

Senior Center Annual Report

Shannon Ray gave the update from the Senior Center. A copy of the PowerPoint is in the meeting
files labeled October 4, 2021.

CIP Committee Recommendation

Mr. Howard stated that the CIP Committee recommends that the Recreation Department proceed
with an application to the Parks and Recreation Trust Fund Grant (PARTF) to repair and renovate
the old DF Walker School gymnasium. He stated that the Committee would like to make repairs
to the gym to match what is being done to the two story building. He stated that the grant requires
a dollar for dollar match up to $500,000. He stated that he feels it is worth the effort to apply for
the grant to make repairs. He asked Cathy Smith to provide information on the capital reserve
fund.

Ms. Smith stated that as of June 2021 and three months of revenue along with a projection for the
rest of the year. She stated that the unobligated Capital Reserve Fund Balance is estimated to be
$1.9 million in June of 2022.

It is in order for the Board to authorize Recreation Staff to prepare the grant application an submit
it by the application deadline. The grant funds require a dollar for dollar match up to $500,000.

Commissioner McLaughlin noted that there is a 10 year master plan on file. He stated that the
grants can be applied for during the time of the master plan otherwise a rewrite of the master plan
would be required. He stated the CIP Committee feels pursuing this grant is worthwhile.

Chair Kirby noted that there is a cost to apply for the funds.

Mr. Howard stated that he would like to hire for an RFQ to develop the grant. He stated that process
would help decide the costs and what needs to be done to the gym. He stated the application is
due in the spring.

Commissioner McLaughlin noted the cost for another master plan is about $30,000 to $40,000.
Chair Kirby asked if the gym work is on the CIP.

Mr. Howard stated the CIP addresses the windows and HVAC. He stated that if the grant is
awarded other things could be done to the gym that are needed.

Commissioner Evans asked how much money is budgeted.
Mr. Howard stated that $225,000 is in the CIP.
Chair Kirby asked what year would the monies be spent.

Mr. Howard stated they will not be spent this year but they were planned to be expended this year.



Chair Kirby noted the high school recently proposed a renovation to the 2™ floor.

Mr. Howard stated he is not asking for a final decision but permission to move forward to apply
for the funds.

Chair Kirby stated that the project needs to be in the CIP. He recommended the CIP Committee
halt any field trips and focus on funding projects.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved that staff begin the RFQ process to obtain a qualified consultant
to assist Recreation Staff with the grant application.

Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0).

Schedule of Values Presentation

Tax Administrator Melissa Radke introduced Ryan Vincent to present the Board with the proposed
Schedule of Values for the Chowan County 2022 Property Tax Reappraisal. He provided the
Board with a PowerPoint presentation to detail the revaluation. A copy of the PowerPoint is in the
meeting file labeled October 4, 2021. Additionally, the Board was provided a copy of the 2022
Schedule of Values. A copy is in the meeting file labeled October 4, 2021.

Mr. Vincent noted the revaluation includes a full remeasure/relist and updated information on each
property. He noted the schedule is advertised for the public to give them time to provide comment
on the proposed schedule of values. He stated that the reappraisal takes effect January 1, 2022. He
noted that in January 2022 he will come back before the Board to present the reappraisal and to
give public reappraisal presentations. In February/March notices will be mailed to taxpayers
however January 1% is the effective date of the reappraisal.

Board members asked questions about the process for the value presentation and appeals process,
deadlines and impact on the valuation.

Ms. Radke noted that the new property record cards will be easier to read and more information
will be put out for the public. She noted the schedule of values explains how the values came to
be. She noted it will be in order for the Board to schedule the public hearing to obtain public
comment on the proposed schedules, standards and rules at the November 1, 2021 meeting. The
proposed schedule of values will be posted at the Tax Administrator’s Office and Tax Department
website.

Commissioner Cummings moved to schedule the public hearing for November 1, 2021. Chair
Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0).

Food Bank of the Albemarle Request
Mr. Howard provided the Board with a request from the Food Bank for an appropriation of
$107,000 for infrastructure needs. He stated this is for the Elizabeth City location.

Commissioner Cummings moved to decline the request. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the
motion passed unanimously (6-0).

Financial Items




Budget Amendments

BA2022-010
.. Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)

Solid Waste

62-3471-530-00 Scrap Tire Grant 5,650.75

62-4710-694-00 Scrap Tire Grant 5,650.75

62-3471-531-00 White Goods Grant 1,960.11

62-4710-695-00 White Goods Grant 1,960.11

Balanced 7,610.86 7,610.86

Justification:

To amend the 2022 budget for Solid Waste to include Scrap Tire and

BA2022-011

White Goods grants.




Account Number Account Description Revenue Expense
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Register of Deeds
11-3418-415-00 *Preservation/Automation 1,033.25
11-4180-298-00 *Dept Supplies - Auto/Pres 344.42
11-4180-440-00 *Contr Svcs - Automation/Pres 344.42
11-4180-511-00  *C/O - Auto / Pres 344.41
Animal Shelter
11-3438-894-00 *Donations - Chowan 125.00
11-3438-894-01 *Donations - Gates 60.00
11-3438-894-02  *Donations - Perquimans 45.00
11-3438-894-03  *Donations - Other 50.00
11-4381-600-00  *Donation - Expense 280.00
11-3438-895-00 *Adoption - Chowan 160.00
11-3438-895-01 *Adoption - Gates 180.00
11-3438-895-03 *Adoption - Other 260.00
11-4381-441-00  *Contr Svcs - Spay/Neuter 600.00
Cooperative Ext:
11-3495-370-00  *AG Program Fees Discretionary 605.00
11-4953-440-00  *Ag Program Fees Discretionary 605.00
11-3495-378-00  *4-H Fees Discretionary 100.00
11-4953-448-00  *4-H Fees Discretionary 100.00
11-3495-379-00  *Livestock Program 2,025.00
11-4953-449-00 *Livestock Program 2,025.00
Recreation
11-3612-487-00  *Recreation Donations 120.00
11-6130-299-01  *Donations - Dept Supplies 120.00
Senior Center
11-3616-532-00 *Donations - Home Del Meals 25.00
11-4268-904-01  *Donations - Home Del Meals 25.00
11-3616-533-00 *Reg Fees - Trips 674.00
11-4268-312-00  *TRIPS - Senior Citizens 674.00
11-3616-533-01  *Registration Fees Activities 315.00
11-4268-299-01  *Activities - Dept. Supplies 315.00
11-3616-535-03  *Healthways 336.00
11-4268-352-02  *Healthways 336.00
DSS
12-3531-230-14  *DSS Special Events 243.00
12-5310-450-00  *DSS Special Events 243.00
Balanced 6,356.25 6,356.25
Total Discretionary Income Received FYE 2022 42,577.71

Justification:

To amend the 2022 budget to include Discretionary income received

BA2022-012

through August 2021.




S R E
Account Mumber Account Description {In::;[l::zl [In:f;;:s—}
Dss
12-5310-121-00 Salaries - Regular (20,000.00)
12-5310-1928-00 Professional Services - Temp Agency 20,000.00
Balanced - -

Justification:

Ta amend the 2022 budget far D55 to include additional services from Vanguard
Staffing. Monies are being transferred between line items and no additional
funding is being requested.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the budget amendments as presented. Chair Kirby
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0).

Financial Report — August 2021
Ms. Smith provided the financial report through August 31, 2021. A copy of the report is in the
meeting file labeled October 4, 2021.

Update on JA Holmes Highschool Project Expenses
Ms. Smith provided the JA Holmes Highschool Project Expenses. A copy of the report is in the
meeting file labeled October 4, 2021.

External Board/Committee Report
Chair Kirby asked that the Board members report on the activities of the external boards to which
they have been appointed.

Commissioner McLaughlin reported on the CIP Committee meeting.

Mexico Rd. Water Line Project
Mr. Howard stated this is a State funded project. He stated there were three bids, the low bid was

$164,095 from Hendrix Barnhill Company. He stated it is recommended that the Board award the
bid to the low bidder.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to award to the low bidder Hendrix Barnhill Co. Chair Kirby
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0).

Manager’s Report

County Manager Kevin Howard updated the Board on the Project Tracking Sheet a copy is in the
meeting file labeled October 4, 2021. He noted he had a conference call with DEQ and DWR. He
stated Rivers and Associates is working on an amended SOC letter to request new dates.

Timely and Important Matters
There were none.




Adjourn
Being no further business Commissioner Cummings moved to adjourn the meeting. Chair Kirby

asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0).

Bob Kirby, Chairman Susanne Stallings, Clerk

Cathy Smith, Finance Officer



